CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT INDEPENDENCE HEALTH AND WELLBEING Monday, 14th February, 2011

Present:- Councillor Doyle (in the Chair); Councillors Gosling, Jack, P. A. Russell and Walker.

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Steele.

H56. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 31ST JANUARY, 2011

Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting held on 31st January, 2011.

Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meetings held on 31st January, 2011 be approved as a correct record.

H57. ADULT SERVICES REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2010/11

Consideration was given to a report, introduced by the Finance Manager, (Adult Services) which provided a financial forecast for the Adult Services Department within the Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate to the end of March, 2011 based on actual income and expenditure to the end of December, 2010.

The forecast for the financial year 2010/11 was an overall underspend of $\pm 390,000$ (i.e. approximately 0.5%) against the revised approved net revenue budget of ± 71.3 million.

Reasons for the forecast underspend included:-

- overachievement in the savings associated with the merger of the Wardens and Care Enablers Service
- higher than anticipated response from staff to voluntary severance
- additional savings through holding vacancies to facilitate redeployment of staff in support of the various structural reviews
- tight financial management within the service

However, during 2010/11, a number of significant budget pressures had emerged across the wider Council, and as part of meeting the in-year budget pressures, Adult Services had contributed a total of £868,000 savings from its original approved budget.

The latest year end forecast showed that there were a number of underlying budget pressures which were offset by a number of forecast underspends. These were set out in detail in the report submitted.

Also reported, for the period April to December, 2010, was the total expenditure on Agency staff for Adult Services compared with an actual cost for the same period last year. Non-contractual overtime for Adult Services was also detailed.

The report set out the current position for the Department with a summary of the overall financial projection for each main service area/client group both against original approved budget and the revised budget approved by the Cabinet.

It was reported that to mitigate any further financial pressures within the Service, budget meetings with Service Directors and Managers were continuing to be held on a monthly basis to monitor financial performance against the revised approved budget and ensure expenditure was within this revised budget.

Reference was made to additional income from NHS Rotherham in respect of additional funding announced by the Government for the support of social care both in 2010-11 and 2011-12.

Members present raised and discussed the following:-

- certainty of the additional health funding, inclusion into the 2011/2012 budget and package of services to promote better services for patients upon discharge from hospitals
- social worker recruitment
- Direct Payments
- supporting people returning home from out of district hospitals delaying the implementation of community based alternative to residential care within Physical and Sensory Disabilities
- year end opportunity to bid for a proportion of any overall corporate underspend

Resolved:- That the latest financial projection against budget for the year based on actual income and expenditure to the end of December, 2010 for Adult Services be noted.

H58. ADULT SERVICES CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 2010/11

Consideration was given to a report, presented by the Finance Manager (Adult Services), in respect of the anticipated outturn against the approved Adult Services Capital Programme for the period April, 2010 to January, 2011. The projected final outturn for each scheme was detailed.

It was reported that the actual expenditure for the period April to 19° January, 2011, was £331,000 against a revised Programme of £800,000. It was explained that capital schemes were funded from a variety of different funding sources including unsupported borrowing, allocations from Capital Receipts, Supported Capital Expenditure and specific Capital grant funding. Appendix 1 showed actual expenditure to date against the approved budget together with the forecast outturn position.

The report gave a brief forecast Outturn position for each project including:-

<u>Older People</u>

- the balance of funding for the two new residential homes which related to landscaping and outstanding fees.
- the Assistive Technology funding from NHS Rotherham being managed jointly and being used to purchase Telehealth and Telecare equipment.

- the Department of Health specific grant issued to improve the environment within residential care provision carried forward into 2010/11.

Learning Disabilities

- completion of the refurbishment programme at Addison Day Centre.
- the capital scheme to refurbish the respite centre at Treefields had now been completed from the Council's Strategic Maintenance Investments Fund.

Mental Health

- a small balance remaining on the Cedar House capital budget would be used for the purchase of additional equipment.
- large proportion of the Supported Capital Expenditure allocation rolled forward into future years whilst spending plans were finalised. Committed spend in 2010/11 related to the purchase of equipment of EMI clients within the 2 in-house residential care homes.

Management Information

- balance of the Capital grant allocation for Adult Social Care IT Infrastructure carried forward from 2009/10 to meet the ongoing commitments to fund the Adults Integrated Solution as part of introducing Electronic Social Care management.
- new Transformation in Adult Social Care Capital Grant announced in 2010/11. Spending plans were currently being finalised including the cost of transferring direct payments to the Social Care SWIFT system.

<u>General</u>

- the purchase and implementation of an electronic home care scheduling system by April, 2011, for care enablers.

The Cabinet Member referred to an area of un-maintained land to the front of Lord Hardy Court. It was reported that as far as the Service knew this was unattributed and there were revenue cost implications to keep the area maintained.

Resolved:- (1) That the forecast Capital outturn for 2010/11 be noted.

(2) That the Director of Health and Wellbeing speak to Green Spaces about the land in the vicinity of Lord Hardy Court and investigate, including with the Wentworth North Area Assembly and the Hoober Ward Councillors, how this area could be improved and brought into use.

H59. ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY - UPDATE

The Director of Health and Wellbeing submitted an update on the progress to date with regard to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Review of Assistive

Technology carried out by the Adult Social Care and Health Scrutiny Panel in October, 2010.

It was reported that a number of significant changes had been made to the delivery of Assistive Technology that addressed issues raised within the Review. These included:-

- Appointment of a Dedicated Assistive Technology on a temporary secondment basis to raise the profile of AT and to address some of the issues raised and also to give a focal point to the provision of equipment so that staff found it easier to provide support easily and without blockages.
- A series of visioning events had taken place at which the process for recommending AT had been simplified:- This had seen a significant improvement in the numbers of staff who were now considering AT as a viable alternative to reduce expensive care packages.
- Establishment of a system to monitor and demonstrate the savings that AT could bring:- It was pointed out that when staff requested AT support they were also asked to detail the provision that they would have made under traditional care packages. The database showed the savings that had been made by the provision.
- Change in emphasis during the assessment process:- Staff were being asked to give reasons why they had decided not to recommend AT provision. This had highlighted the importance of AT and engaged staff in greater deliberation about the provision of support.
- Identification of simple and direct access to equipment: A series of cards had been developed (copies provided at the meeting) – Carer Package, Medication Management Package, Epilepsy Package, Environmental Package, Purposeful Walking Package and Falls Package – and allocated to staff. This was an innovative way of identifying the most frequently allocated packages and had been seen by one of the major providers as an excellent way of raising the profile of AT.
- Highlighting good news stories with an emphasis on outcomes:- A number of case studies had been circulated to emphasise the personal dimension to successful implementation of support. They also proved to be an effective vehicle for demonstrating the benefits to the customer.
- Better use of available information:- A piece of work was to be introduced that would give credible data to demonstrate the benefits of AT provision in one particular area.
- Prevention of avoidable admissions to hospital and the prevention/delay of admission to long term residential care:- The card scheme placed emphasis on a defined package matrix that clearly identified how assessment for AT equipment could be linked to delaying residential care, supporting the provision of domiciliary care and improving the support that could be given to carers.

- Provision of information and signposting:- A campaign to raise the profile of AT in Rotherham had commenced with a dedicated AT Week to take place in March
- Direct involvement of staff in developing AT:- The appointment of the AT Officer now gave an extra resource to research and benchmark equipment
- Better use of resources:- Financial savings that could be brought out by intelligent allocation of resources
- Better liaison with Rothercare:- Closer working with Rothercare staff to solve issues relating to the fitting of equipment and identifying exactly how Rothercare would respond to any given alert
- Development of benchmarking opportunities:- The Regional Assistive Technology Manager for Yorkshire and Humber had provided excellent support

Members present raised and discussed the following:-

- provision of equipment and how much the client had to contribute and the Council's criteria
- bigger equipment needs considered by the Adaptations Service
- good media coverage
- simplified procedure to obtain Assistive Technology
- liaison with the Fire Service, Rother Care and the Council
- the wide catalogue of equipment now available
- provision of digital TV for people aged over 75

Resolved:- (1) That the Neighbourhoods and Adult Services' response to the Scrutiny Review, as now reported, be noted.

(2) That the progress that had been made in delivering assistive technology within Rotherham be noted.

H60. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:- That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (business/financial affairs.)

H61. SUPPORTING PEOPLE PROGRAMME

Further to Minute No. 46 of 22nd December, 2010, the Strategic Commissioning Manager submitted a report detailing the procurement process and subsequent evaluation undertaken for EU Classified Annex 2b services to provide housing-related and preventative support.

It was pointed out that 14 floating support contracts were taken to tender of which 12 contracts were awarded by the Cabinet Member on 22rd December,

2010, which left two remaining contracts not awarded.

Resolved:- (1) That the extension of the current contract for the Floating Support Service Providing Housing Related Support for BME Women Experiencing Domestic Abuse for a period of four months to $31^{\rm st}$ July, 2011 be noted.

(2) That the award of the tender for FS615 Home Improvement Service be approved.